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construction of Fort Mississauga at Niagara; the planning of 
Fort Lennox at Isle-aux-Noix on the Richelieu River; and 
sundry smaller works at Quebec and Kingston. 

What occupied him between leaving North America in 1816 
and his return in 1825 is not known except that he and his 
wife, Heriot Frances Thomson, had four more sons, three in 
England and one in Guernsey. Their first son had been born in 
Halifax where they were married in 1812. But no service record 
or private papers for this time seem to have survived and his 
obituaries are sketchy. 

When Nicolls was reposted to Halifax as Commanding 
Royal Engineer in 1825, he was soon drawn into helping frame 
a wide-ranging report by a commission chaired by Sir James 
Carmichael Smyth, his contemporary at the Royal Military 
Academy. Among its recommendations was that Fort George 
on Halifax's Citadel Hill be rebuilt. Nicolls' contributions and 
habitual deference are well described by Joseph Greenough in a 
1977 publication from Parks Canada http://parkscanadahistory.
com/series/chs/17/chs17-1h.htm The Citadel occupied most 
of his time until he left Halifax, but he also oversaw completion 
of the 'Sherbrooke' Martello tower and lighthouse on McNab's 
Island in Halifax harbour. Other designs he made at this 
time were not realized, for example, barracks and ordnance 
buildings at the lower cove in Saint John, NB, and additional 

fortifications on Partridge Island there.
Nicolls returned to Quebec as Commanding Royal 

Engineer for the Canadas from October 1831 to May 1837 
which coincided with the building of Fort Henry at Kingston 
to plans by several earlier Royal Engineers. As construction 
proceeded he modified the designs though lacking authority 
to do so which drew disapproval from his superiors. He 
also originated the first detailed proposals for the New Fort, 
now Stanley Barracks, at York [Toronto], but his plans were 
changed before construction went ahead in 1840-41. 

Appointed a major general in 1837, Nicolls was called home 
to England later that year. He became Colonel Commandant 
of the Royal Engineers in 1851 and a full general in 1854. He 
died at his residence near Southampton on 1 August 1860.

This article would have been impossible to write without 
generous contributions from many people, among whom were 
Jim Burant, René Chartrand, Bob Dallison, Tim Dube, Ron 
Dunning, Robert Fraser, Bob Garcia, John Grodzinski, Joe 
Greenough, Anne-Marie Jonah, Chris Laverton, Eamonn 
O'Keeffe, Danielle Sellers, Garry Shutlak, and Harold Wright. 

Stephen Otto is a director of The Friends of Fort York and editor 
emeritus of The Fife & Drum.

This plan of Fort York as rebuilt after its predecessor was destroyed by the Americans in 1813 
was signed by Gustavus Nicolls in June 1816. Credit: Library & Archives Canada, NMC 23139

The locations of the first and second Fort Erie are shown 
on a plan dated August 1803 and signed by Gother Mann, 
Commanding Royal Engineer at Quebec. Nicolls later held that 
position. Credit: Library & Archives Canada, NMC 3801
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“A Journal,” wrote army surgeon William Ord Mackenzie in 
1840, “is meant for the amusement of both writer and reader.” 
In ‘Another World,’ a scholarly edition of Mackenzie’s own 
journal in five volumes, co-editors Sandra Alston and C.M. 
Blackstock ensure that a journal’s purpose also supports later 
goals of historical research. Mackenzie, a Scotsman whose 
bilingualism uniquely qualified him for work in Canada, 
documented his travels from England to his military posting 
in Toronto in 1839, and through Upper and Lower Canada to 
other postings and vacation jaunts until his return to England 
in 1843. Mackenzie adorned his narrative with sketches of 
maps and of unfamiliar North American items (mainly modes 
of transport such as stage coach, sleigh, canoe, snowshoe), 
along with clippings from newspapers and books. His journal 
has been digitized and will soon be available on the website of 
the Fisher Library of the University of Toronto.

Mackenzie’s journal promises something for everyone 
interested in this critical period in the history of the Canadas: 
descriptions of people and places, including architecture, 
transport, hotels, geography, climate, industry, agriculture; 
food and drink; pastimes, especially dances, theatre, music, 
reading, and tourist attractions; customs and speech; 
religion; politics and government; military organization and 
personnel. It includes his travels through the United States 
to reach Toronto before spring thaw, and his comparisons 
of Americans and Canadians still ring true. Mackenzie also 
reacts to world events, notably any news about the royal 
family and military conflicts (for example, the Anglo-Afghan 
War). He always provides his informed perspective on the 

In Review:
‘Another World’: William Ord  
Mackenzie’s Sojourn in the 
Canadas, 1839-1843
by Jennifer J. Connor

matter, often with humour. In keeping with his aim to write 
for relaxation and reminiscences, Mackenzie conveys little 
about the garrison hospitals, military patients, or his medical 
care of Canadians outside the garrisons. Nevertheless, when 
he portrays the physiognomy, character, and physique of real 
people–sometimes at their expense–his keen eye for detail 
resembles a clinical assessment of them and their traits.

Mackenzie’s volumes in this way offer the raw material not 
just for history, but also for fictionalization. Individual volume 
titles suggest changes in the narrator’s focus, while their time 
frames lengthen: ‘in Canada’ (Vol. 1, February-April 1839), to 
‘sojourn’ (Vols. 2, 3: May-October 1839; October 1839-May 
1840) and then ‘scribbler’ (Vol. 4, September 1840-September 
1841) ‘in another world,’ to ‘Journal of an Officer in Canada’ 
(Vol. 5, September 1841-October 1843). Indeed, Mackenzie’s 
character analyses along with his frequent depictions of 
women and his romantic inclinations towards them lend 
his work an overall sense of a picaresque novel. Mackenzie 
would have been familiar with this genre, for his reading 
was formidable: he had so much time on his hands that he 
regularly refers to his boredom, and he read continuously, 
methodically annotating every item. Bedridden in Rivière-
du-Loup with a broken leg, he took advantage there of an 
exquisite library and current English magazines; his wide 
reading included recent Canadian books such as Haliburton’s 
Clockmaker and Jameson’s Winter Studies. A momentous 
occasion for him was the visit in 1842 of Charles Dickens, 
whom Mackenzie delighted in entertaining.

Volume 2 relates Mackenzie’s Toronto-based service with 
the 93rd Highlanders, yet even here, he notes his hospital 
work by November 1839 was diminishing to a “sinecure.” 
Apart from some Toronto events such as the horse race week, 
regimental inspection, dances, a concert, a duel, a brigade day 
accident, the athletic games, and a description of Toronto 
itself, much of the discussion focuses on activities outside the 
town: the Methodist camp meeting near Brighton, and a trip 
to Niagara Falls. Historians seeking details of garrison life will 
be disappointed.

Military historians will, however, find much of general 
interest in this Champlain Society edition, for co-editors 
Alston and Blackstock outline military and medical 
backgrounds in their introduction and, most importantly, 
provide thorough biographical and historical information for 
all the military men and context for all of Mackenzie’s military 
allusions. Still, a paragraph at the outset about William Ord 
Mackenzie and his life would orient the contemporary reader 
more quickly to the man and his significance. Reference to 
the long medical topography tradition in which Mackenzie 
compiled his meteorological notes (four months for Toronto) 
would also explain their context; in 1819, for example, 
another assistant army surgeon from Scotland, John Douglas, 
published his topographical studies of Upper Canada in 

mailto:mailto:info%40fortyork.ca?subject=
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the War of 1812 (including services and medical ailments 
of troops and provincial militia). Similarly, Mackenzie’s 
collection of specimens for the army’s medical museum could 
be explained within another longstanding medical–and army–
tradition.

The value of this Champlain Society edition is delineated in 
the co-editors’ textual note on the bibliographical arrangement 
of the manuscript volumes and the editorial practice used to 
transcribe them; in photo facsimile pages of volume titles to 
show Mackenzie’s calligraphic representation of a printed title 

page; and in the index and an appendix listing every work that 
Mackenzie read. It therefore forms an essential companion to 
the original journal volumes themselves.

Jennifer J. Connor is Professor of Medical Humanities in 
the Faculty of Medicine, cross-appointed to the Department of 
History, Memorial University of Newfoundland. Her research 
on Canadian medical history, with emphasis on book culture and 
medical discourse, has appeared in various publications, including 
the History of the Book in Canada volumes.

Redevelopment of the Quality Meats Site
by Staff

Councillor Mike Layton hosted a public meeting on 
January 26 to consider preliminary development plans put 
forward by the new owner of the site of the former abattoir. 
The Easton's Group of Hotels has purchased the odd-shaped 
property (municipal address: 2 Tecumseth St.) and retained 
Page+Steele/IBI Group Architects to design a complex of 
townhomes and apartments adjacent to and over ground floor 
commercial spaces. The initial design has three buildings 
of 11, 14, and 19 storeys decreasing in height as they get 
further from the rail corridor and closer to the lower-scale 
nineteenth-century housing in the Niagara Neighbourhood. 
The proposed site plan also includes a new street, enlarged 
park to the west, and a pedestrian and cycling trail along the 
railway. 

After Councillor Layton welcomed the fifty to sixty people 
attending the meeting Graig Uens, city planner for the area, 

gave a short presentation of the South Niagara Planning 
Strategy, approved by city council in August 2014, that 
will guide development. http://www.fortyork.ca/images/
management-docs/south-niagara-planning-update_jan-26-
2016.pdf  This was followed by an explanation of the owner's 
proposal by Mansoor Kazerouni of the architectural team. 
http://www.fortyork.ca/images/management-docs/design-
proposal_former-quality-meats_2-tecumseth-st_jan-2016.pdf

The next step in the process is up to the Easton's Group. 
When it has had sufficient feedback on its preliminary 
plans, it will proceed with a formal development application. 
Meanwhile, a window for comment and questions remains 
open. Please e-mail feedback to Councillor Layton 
councillor_layton@toronto.ca with a copy to Graig Uens 
guens@toronto.ca

Preliminary design proposal for Quality 
Meats site viewed from Fort York, across 
the rail corridor. Credit: The Easton's 
Group of Hotels, Page+Steele/IBI Group 
Architects

http://www.fortyork.ca/images/management-docs/south-niagara-planning-update_jan-26-2016.pdf
http://www.fortyork.ca/images/management-docs/south-niagara-planning-update_jan-26-2016.pdf
http://www.fortyork.ca/images/management-docs/south-niagara-planning-update_jan-26-2016.pdf
http://www.fortyork.ca/images/management-docs/design-proposal_former-quality-meats_2-tecumseth-st_jan-2016.pdf
http://www.fortyork.ca/images/management-docs/design-proposal_former-quality-meats_2-tecumseth-st_jan-2016.pdf
mailto:councillor_layton@toronto.ca
mailto:guens@toronto.ca
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The Birthplace of Toronto
Contributions from the Staff at the Fort

News From

2016 will likely go down as one of the most difficult years 
in which to access Fort York since the late 19th century. 
With ongoing work on the Gardiner Expressway continuing 
through until the fall, work on Garrison Road and Garrison 
Common, exhibit work within the Visitor Centre, and the start 
of construction on the Fort York pedestrian/bicycle bridge, 
access to the fort will be less than ideal. 

While construction will continue into 2017 with Project: 
Under Gardiner and the completion of the pedestrian/bicycle 
bridge, many of the major site improvements we have been 
working towards will begin to materialize over the next year 
or so. This includes stronger connections from the north via 
the new bridge, a more direct connection from the large 
parking lot at Fleet Street and Strachan Avenue to the Visitor 
Centre, and improved connections and landscaping across 
the Fort York Boulevard frontage of the site. 

As reported in the November issue of Fife and Drum (www.
fortyork.ca/images/newsletters/fife-and-drum-2015/fife-
and-drum-nov-2015.pdf), Project: Under Gardiner (www.
undergardiner.com) is the result of a $25 million donation 
from Wil and Judy Matthews. Extending from Exhibition 
Place in the west to Spadina Avenue in the east, the largest 
portion of the project runs through Fort York National 
Historic Site. This provides an unprecedented opportunity 
to implement the next major phase of our landscape master 

Manager’s Report
by David O’Hara, Site Manager

plan across the Fort York Boulevard frontage. While the final 
components of the first phase of the project have yet to 
be confirmed, we are hopeful that the initiative will spark 
interest in completion of the east extension of the Visitor 
Centre's weathered steel façade. The full façade, as originally 
envisioned by Patkau Architects and Kearns Mancini 
Architects, has yet to be constructed and is currently 
unfunded.

With work proceeding across the grounds of the fort, 
exhibit installation is well underway within the Visitor 
Centre. Our staff team has been working closely with 
Toronto-based exhibit designers Reich + Petch and 
fabricator The Taylor Group. Exhibits in the lobby, exhibit 
gallery, vault, and 'Time Tunnel' will be put in place over 
the next couple of months and will open to the public at 
some point in early summer (date to be confirmed). A new 
orientation film is also being developed by Hillman & Carr of 
Toronto and Washington, DC.

Even with major construction and access restrictions, 
our 2016 calendar of events and programs remains a busy 
one. With Queen Charlotte's Ball, the Art of Peace, and 
Mad for Marmalade (sold out) already behind us, next up 
and taking us through until June will be our Battle of York 
Commemorative Weekend, World Fiddle Day, Doors Open, 
Artillery Day, and the 48th Highlanders 125th Parade and 
Mini-Tattoo. The summer months will again be busy with 
many events big and small. 

We hope visitors are patient throughout the year as we 
work through many of the improvements noted above.

Gardiner Expressway deck rehabilitation construction as 
seen in front of the Visitor Centre, Fort York National Historic 
Site. Credit: Ted Smolak

mailto:mailto:info%40fortyork.ca?subject=
http://www.fortyork.ca/
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http://www.undergardiner.com
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Earlier in March, the Project: Under Gardiner launched 
#ReclaimTheName–a campaign calling for the public to help 
come up with the permanent name for this new kind of public 
space. The campaign began with a city-wide brainstorm that 
invites Torontonians to submit their suggested names online at 
www.undergardiner.com/name.html

The deadline for submissions is 1 April 2016. Following 
that, a jury composed of some of Toronto’s most creative, 
engaged, and diverse citizens will review all the name 
submissions and whittle down the list. Between three and 
five of the top names will be put to a public vote in May and 
Torontonians will be asked to campaign for their favourite.

Since our last update, the project team has been hard 
at work. We have now held a series of meetings with local 
stakeholders and community members to discuss the 
project and understand how it can be integrated into 

The Friends will mark the fourth anniversary of the launch 
of our current website, www.fortyork.ca, in May 2016. This 
initiative coincided with an exciting time at the Fort York 
National Historic Site when construction of the Visitor Centre 
and numerous events such as the Bicentennial of the War 
of 1812 and the Battle of York, Pan and Parapan Am Games 
programming, the Magna Carta exhibit, and concerts and 
festivals all made the fort a destination of note within a 
relatively short period of time. This increased activity was 
reflected in a marked building of traffic to our website.

First and foremost, the goal of The Friends’ website has been 
to encourage attendance at the fort and to advocate in its 
best interests. To this end the website contains a brief history 
of Fort York, a listing of the latest news and upcoming events, 
visitor attractions and educational programming information, 
historical articles, the Fife & Drum newsletter archive, and 
an extensive chronological gallery of historical and current 
images. In short, the website strives to be both informative and 
engaging.

In support of exhibits, events, and programming the website 
has promoted more than 175 events and published 40 news 
items in the last four years. The most popular menu category 
has been ‘Plan Your Visit’ with over 190,000 hits. ‘A Brief History 
of Fort York’ was the highest website menu item with over 

Project: Under Gardiner – Upcoming Public Meeting and a New Name
by Christopher McKinnon

The Friends’ Website: Four Years and Counting
by Ted Smolak

surrounding plans. An early draft of the schematic design 
for the site is nearly complete and will be presented at 
an upcoming public meeting scheduled for 7 April 2016. 
Waterfront Toronto will be seeking feedback from the public 
on the design and programming for the site.

PUBLIC MEETING
Thursday, April 7th from 6:30 to 9:30pm

Harbourfront Community Centre
627 Queens Quay W

For more information about  
Project: Under Gardiner

visit www.undergardiner.com

Christopher McKinnon is manager of digital and social 
media, Waterfront Toronto.

45,000 hits, while the Field Trip Festival garnered the most event 
hits at 8500. During this period we have had a total of more than 
235,000 visitors to the website. These numbers suggest that it is 
achieving its goal of encouraging and facilitating visitation and 
confirms that there is significant interest in Fort York.

The second purpose of www.fortyork.ca is to serve our 
organization. Here a visitor or member can learn about The 
Friends, our vision and mandate. Online it is easy to become a 
member, renew a membership, or make a charitable donation. 
http://www.fortyork.ca/join-us/become-a-friend-of-fort-york.html

A retrospective would not be complete without looking 
forward. It is recognized that the website must continue to 
evolve by staying current with technology and visitors’ viewing 
trends. This may require a transition to a mobile-friendly 
responsive design, but rest assured that any change will be built 
upon the solid foundation that currently exists.

Visit www.fortyork.ca today to find out why it is the top ranked 
Google search destination in every Fort York-related search. 

www.undergardiner.com/name.html
http://www.fortyork.ca/
http://www.undergardiner.com
http://www.fortyork.ca/join-us/become-a-friend-of-fort-york.html
http://www.fortyork.ca/
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Magna Carta Puts Visitor Centre in a New Light 
by Christopher Moore

A cold Friday night in November 2015: we went to see 
Magna Carta, nearing the end of its five-week run at the Fort 
York Visitor Centre. There is nothing like a buzzing crowd at 
a busy museum or historic site to reassure you that history is 
not some fragile flower confined to the academic hothouse. 
That night, it felt like Fort York had a hit on its hands.

People flowed into the Visitor Centre and the exhibit 
steadily, and they were staying: watching the orientation 
film, observing the exhibits, engaging with the scrolling text 
and the interactive globe, and the other touch-me elements. 
Above all, they stood at the sealed display cases to drink 
in whatever sensation it is that comes from contemplating 
a pair of seven-hundred-year-old parchments covered in 
words we could not decipher in a language we did not 
understand: Magna Carta and the Charter of the Forest.

The exhibit space and the Visitor Centre were busy, almost 
crowded: lots of youngish couples, a few families, some older 
people. They engaged with the displays, read and listened, 
and made their own routes. For a small, powerful exhibit like 
this, the space was perfect. It looked like what the Visitor 
Centre was built for.

“It was an honour and a privilege to be the venue in 
Toronto,” said Larry Ostola, Toronto’s Director of Museums 
and Heritage Services, of the Magna Carta show. “It was the 
first time for the Visitor Centre to host a major travelling 
exhibition. Marketing, environmental control, security, 
signage … the team came through on all fronts.”

Visitors to the Magna Carta exhibit at the Visitor Centre 
totaled 12,797, or more than 2500 a week–not as many 
as the Canadian Museum of History in Gatineau or at the 

Alberta Legislature, which each drew over 22,000 people, 
but very good numbers for a new venue not yet known 
as an exhibition centre. Fifty per cent of the Magna Carta 
visitors were “walk-ins”–not groups or invitees to an event, 
but simply people who turned up and bought a ticket. 
“It was great as a way to draw attention to Fort York,” said 
Ostola. “This helped many Torontonians to see the Visitor 
Centre and the whole site in a new light.” 

There will not be a constant flow of Magna Carta events 
at Fort York. This spring the space Magna Carta filled in the 
Visitor Centre will become home to the new permanent 
exhibition on the history of Fort York. But the redevelopment 
of Garrison Common and of the Under Gardiner in front 
of the Visitor Centre will keep Fort York in the public eye. 
Already there have been inquiries about other travelling 
exhibitions, and Fort York does have other space available, 
both in the Visitor Centre and inside the fort. 

What does an exhibit like Magna Carta do for Fort York? 
Thousands of Torontonians have a new way to associate 
Fort York with history. And with passion: Suzy Rodness, who 
with her husband Len initiated Magna Carta’s Canadian 
tour, remembers a security guard who was there five days 
a week for the full five weeks. “Every time I came down, she 
would ask me question after question about the document. 
She was spellbound ... One afternoon, I noticed her walking 
through the space–out of uniform–with a man, pointing 
out various elements of the exhibit. When I approached her 
to say ‘hello’ she introduced me to her husband. It was their 
day off and she was spending it at Fort York showing her 
husband, with pride, what it was she had been guarding.”

Opening day visitors reflected in the entrance to the Magna Carta exhibit at the Visitor 
Centre, Fort York National Historic Site. Credit: Andrew Stewart

mailto:mailto:info%40fortyork.ca?subject=
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APRIL

Cooking with Hannah Glasse 
Sun. April 10, 10 am to 3:30 pm
Before Martha Stewart and Julia Child, even before Mrs. Beeton, Hannah Glasse was the best-
known British cookery writer of the 18th century. Using recipes from The Art of Cookery Made 
Plain and Easy (1747) and The Complete Confectioner (1760) you will learn to create a menu from 
roast to pudding.
Lunch and recipe packages are included.
$75 plus HST. Pre-registration and payment are required.
To register please call 416-392-7484. 

Battle of York Commemorative Weekend 
Sat. and Sun. April 23 and 24, 10 am to 5 pm
Honour the 203rd anniversary of the Battle of York fought on 27 April 1813 and celebrate the 
bicentennial of today's Fort York – the 1816 rebuilt peacetime garrison. The fort comes alive 
with musket firing demonstrations, Georgian cooking in the Officers' Mess Kitchen, site tours, 
and period animation. Kids can try "falling-in" for 1812-era soldiering drill.
On Saturday tread the ground of the US attackers and York defenders as you follow Walking in 
Their Footsteps, a 1.5 hour walking tour with five stops along the way relating to details of the 
battle. Tour commences at 11 am outside the Palais Royale (1601 Lakeshore Blvd. west). The 
walking tour is free, and will continue rain or shine. 
On Sunday a special walking tour at 11 am and 2 pm will focus on the Battle of York. This tour 
will begin at the canteen/museum store at Fort York and highlight the dramatic battle using the 
fort, Garrison Common, and areas of the original shoreline.
Regular admission

MAY

Little Cakes and Biscuits 
Sun. May 1, 10 am to 3:30 pm
Learn to make delicious Georgian baked cakes and biscuits using the wood-fired brick oven in 
the 1826 Officers' Mess Kitchen. Enjoy the delightfully decorated Queen Cakes, (based on a 19th 
century still life painting), Oat Cakes, Shrewsbury Cakes, Filbert Biscuits, Chocolate Biscuits, and 
more. Lunch and recipe packages are included. 
$75 plus HST. Pre-registration and payment are required.
To register please call 416-392-7484.

Meagan’s Walk 
Sat. May 7
Since its inception in 2001 Meagan’s Walk has raised more than $4 million for groundbreaking 
research on the care of and outcomes for young brain tumour patients around the world. The 
signature event is a 5km walk starting at Fort York which culminates with thousands of people 
joining hands to encircle the Hospital for Sick Children in one large hug, sending strength and 
love to those within.
http://www.meaganswalk.com/ 

Ontario Model Soldier Society Show and Sale 
Sat. May 14, 10 am to 5 pm
All ages will enjoy the Society’s annual show and competition: demonstrations of casting and 
painting; displays of connoisseur figures, dioramas, and tableaux of more than a thousand 
pieces. Many vendors will be offering toy soldiers for sale. 
Free with regular admission

2016 Upcoming Events 
Historic Fort York

World Fiddle Day in Toronto 
Sat. May 21, 10 am to 6 pm
Fort York welcomes a day-long celebration of bows on strings as players from several traditions 
teach and perform, leading up to our community "Around-the-World Jam" where players of all 
levels bow their way through forty tunes from twenty-five countries. 
Visit http://worldfiddledaytoronto.ca/ for music, practice sessions at Long & McQuade, and  
more information.

Victoria Day @ Fort York 
Mon. May 23, 10 am to 5 pm
What better way to celebrate Victoria Day than to visit the birthplace of Toronto. Tours, kids’ 
activities, demonstrations of Georgian-era cooking, and English country dancing.
Regular admission

Doors Open Toronto 
Sat. and Sun. May 28 and 29, 10 am to 5 pm
Fort York opens its doors for this annual celebration of history and architecture. Enjoy special 
tours of some of Toronto's oldest architecture and original War of 1812 buildings, or stroll the 
grounds of this National Historic Site.
Saturday is Artillery Day featuring displays of historic and modern guns and demonstrations, 
presentations, and firing through the day.
Celebrate the 125th anniversary of the 48th Highlanders of Canada at the Tattoo on Saturday 
from 2 to 3:30 pm
https://www.facebook.com/Dileas-125-48th-Highlanders-822313774510542
Free admission all weekend

JUNE

Field Trip 
Sat. and Sun. June 4 and 5
Toronto’s downtown community music and arts festival. 
http://fieldtriplife.com 

Indigenous Arts Festival @ Fort York 
Fri. to Sun. June 17 to 19
Energizing Fort York with powerful traditions and contemporary creations the 4th annual festival 
celebrates traditional and contemporary music, dance, theatre, storytelling, visual arts, crafts, 
and food by Indigenous peoples from across Turtle Island. Produced by Fort York in collaboration 
with the Mississaugas of the New Credit First Nation.
www.toronto.ca/fortevents 

Na-Me-Res Traditional Outdoor PowWow 
Sat. June 18, 12 noon to 5:30 pm
Native Men’s Residence Traditional PowWow is held to recognize National Aboriginal History 
Month. The event features traditional dancing, drumming, feast, giveaway, kids’ area, and craft 
vendors. More than one hundred traditional dancers are expected to participate. The day begins 
with a sunrise ceremony and the Grand Entry takes place at 12 noon.
www.toronto.ca/fortevents
http://www.nameres.org/annual-traditional-pow-wow/

Taste of Toronto  
Thurs. to Sun. June 23 to 26, times vary
Fort York is hosting upwards of 20,000 visitors across four days. Featuring world-class chefs, 
Toronto’s top restaurants, and over 70 exhibitors, this is foodie heaven.
http://tasteoftoronto.com/


